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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi
The Board of Directors:

Report on financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi ("the Company"), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2015, includes the statements of profit or loss for the period ended on the
same date, the statement of income and expense items accounted for under equity, the statement of cash flows, the statement

of changes in e»quirty, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other expl'anatdry notes. '

Explanation on the Respohéibilit}/ of Managemént

Responsibility of The Board of Directors of the Company is creating internal control system and selection and implementation:
of the appropriate accounting policies in order to prepare the financial statements that are free from material misstatement in
~ accordance with the Réguviation on Accounting Applications and Financial Tables of Financial Leasingr, Factoring and,Financihg
- ‘Companies and Advice on the Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus for the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies published in the Official Newspaper No. 28861 dated 24 December 2013, Turkish. Accounting Standards, Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards, and other regulations published by BRSA(Banking Regulation and Supervision Agencyj.

Explanation on the Responsibility of the Audit Company

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We performed our audi in
accordance  with  independent audit standards which part of TAS published by POA and
implementing Regulation on the Authorization and Activities of the Institutions to Perform Independent Auditing in Banks pressed
on official gazette on November 01,2006 and numbered 26333. Our audit has been planned and performed fo provide
reasonable assurance for the financial statements that are free from material misstatements. In Independent auditing; The
auditing techniques for collecting audit evidence about the amounts included in the financial statements and explanations and
footnotes of the financial statements have been implemented.” These techniques have been left to the discretion of the
independent auditors to which we employ but the appropriate audit techniques have been determined by considering the
effectiveness of the internal controls during the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and by evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies implemented. Our objective, however is not fo present an opinion on the effectiveness
of the internal control system but to establish the relationship between the financial statements prepared by the Company
management and the internal control system in order to design the independent audit techniques in accordance with the
conditions. Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence has been provided for the establishment of the independent audit opinion
mentioned below. (2)




Opinion

According to our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi (Company) as at December 31, 2015 and the results of its operations for
the year then ended in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and
other regulations, explanations and notes issued by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency regarding
accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reports arising from other regulatory requirements

1) In accordance with the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code, no significant issue has
arisen regarding whether the bookkeeping schedule of the Company for the period of 01 January - 31 December 2015
does not conform to the provisions of the TCC and the financial statements of the VCQmpany's articles of incorporation.
2) In accordance with the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Board of Directors has

 made the required explanations within the scope of the audit and issued the requested documents.

ARTI DEGER ULUSLARARASI BAGIMSIZ DENETIM ve YMM A.S.

Istanbul, Febméry; 09 2016

Stleyman TAF




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND DECEMBER 31, 2014

I

TURKISH LIRA (TRL)
Audited Audited
ASSETS Current Pericd Prior Period
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Notes TRL FC Total TRL FC Total
L CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND THE 8 1.765 - 1.765 6.250 - 6.250
CENTRAL BANK
i FAIR VALUE DIFFERENCE REFLECTED 7O 7 5.918.370 5.918.370
PROFITILOSS (Net)
21 Financial Assets held for trading - - 5918.370 - 5.918.370
22 Fair Value Difference FV Categorized as Profit/lLoss - - - - - -
Statement
2.3 Derivative Marketable Securifies in the Trade Bock - - - - - -
Ik BANKS 8 392.878 2.862 395.740 557.080 557.080
V. RECEIVABLES FROM REVERSE REPURCHASE 9 o o - - .
AGREEMENTS - -
V. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE (Net) 10 ) w - o . i - w -
VL FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Net) 11 375.565.428 | 14.746.930 | 390.312.358 | 342.359.113 | 4.194.157 | 346.553.270
6.1 Fagtoring Receivables af reduced rate 311.914.943 ©o— 3119149431 306.223.961| 4.194.157 | 310.418.118
6.1.1 Domestic 329.882.244 -~ 329.882.244 | 324.072.562 | -1 324.072.562
6.12  Overseas L - -1 R -1 4237799 4.237.799
6.1.3 . Uneamed Income (-} (17.967.301) -1 (17.967.301){ (17.848.601)]  (43.642) | (17.892.243)
6.2  Other Factoring Receivables (Net} - 63.650.485| 14746.930| = 78.397.415] 36.135.152 -] 36.135.152
8.2.1  Domestic : 63.650.485 -] 63.650.485| -36.135.152 -1 36.135.152
622 Overseas - . =] 147469301 14.746.930| - - -
Vil.  FINANCIAL CREDITS 12 . - o -
74 Consumer Loans - : - - - - - .
7.2 Credit Cards - - - - - -
73 Instalment Commercial Credits - - - - - -
Viil.  LEASING RECEIVABLES 13 o - .
8.1  lLeasingReceivables - = - - N : - -
18.1.1  Financial Leasing Recelvables - - - - =
§.1.2  Receivables from Opérating Leasmg - - - - - -~
8.1.3  Uneamed Revenue (- - - - - - -
82 Investments Leased - - - - - -
‘8.3 Advances Given for Lease - - . - - -
. OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 1.832.088 1.832.088 1.626.430 1.626.430
X, ~NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES 15 5.930.993 - 5.930.993 13.427.937 " 3.427.937
10.1  Non-Performing Factoring Receivables 14.560.403 - 14.560.403 5581339 - 5.581.339
10.2  Non-Performing Financial Credits - - - - - i
10.3  Non-Performing Leasing Receivables - - - - - -
104 Special Provision {-) (8.629.410) -1 (8.629410)] (2.153.402) ~ 1 (2.153.402)
XL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETSFORHELDFOR | 16 - - - . -
CASH FLOW HEDGES
111 Fair Value Hedge Risk - - - - - -
112 -Cash Flow Hedge Risk - - - - - -
11.3 - Foreign Operations Net Investment Risk Hedge - - - -
it INVESTMENT HELD UNTIL MATURITY (Net) 17 - -
Xl - SUBSIDIARIES {Net) 18 - - - - -
XV, AFFILIATES (Net) 19 . - - -
XV. . JOINT VENTURES (Net) 26 - - - - -
XV TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 21 538.004° - 538.004 144.062 - 144,062
XVil. “INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) 22 46.291 48.291 98.715 - 98,715
17.1 . Goodwill - - - - - -
172 Other 46.291 - 46.291 98.715 - 98.715
XVl PREPAID EXPENSES 23 2.220.361 2.220.361 2.940.521 ne 2.940.521
IXX.  CURRENT TAXASSETS 243 - - - -
XX.  DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 24b 72,262 - 72.262 22335 - 22.335
XX - OTHER ASSETS 25 e o o - - -
SUBTOTAL 386.600.070 | 14.749.792 | 401.349.862 | 357.100.813 | 4.194.157 | 361.204.970
XViL. ASSETSHELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED 26 - - - - . .
OPERATIONS ({Net}
18.1  Sale Purpose - - - - .
18.2  Discontinued Operations Related - - - - ;
TOTAL ASSETS 386.600.070 | 14.740.792 | 401.349.862 | 357.100.813 | 4.194.157 | 361.294.97¢




AK FAKTORING ANONIV SIRKET]

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND DECEMBER 31, 2014

!

TURKISH LIRA (TRL}
Audited Audited
LIABILITIES Current Period Prior Period
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Notes TRL| FC Total TRL| FC Total

L DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING 7 - e R R an
i CREDITS RECEIVED 27 | 280.923.822( --| 280.923.822 | 269.313.690 | - | 269.313.890
i FACTORING PAYABLES 1 702.259 702.259 265323 | - 265.323
. LEASING PAYABLES 13 A - -
4.1 Financial Leasing Payables - - - Y - -
4.2 Operating Lease Payables i . [ .
43 Other N - - B - -
44 Deferred Financial Leasing Expenses (-) ) - i - -
V. SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) 28 60.000.006 | - 60.000.000] 54.499.856 54.499.856
5.1 Bonds 60.000.000 { -} 60.000.000 -] - -
52 Assets Backed Securities -1 - - - - -
5.3 Securifies - -1 - -1 54490856 -1 54.490.856 |
Vi OTHER PAYABLES - 14 5559242 | - 5.559.242 284226 - 284.226
VI OTHERLIABILITES 29 B - ' ] -
7.1 Deposit ‘ : S - I -
7.2 Other Liabilities B - - -] - -
vir DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL L!AB!LITEES HELD FOR CASH FLOW HEDGES 16 o - .
8.1 Fair Value Hedge Risk ) - - - I - -
8.2 Cash Flow Hedge Risk [ - - I - .
8.3 Foreign Operations Net Invesxment Risk Hedge [ - - PO I -
X TAXES AND LIABILITIES PAYABLE 24.4d 596.911 | - 596.911 - 559.906 | - 559.906
X.  PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND EXPENSES 30 363941 - 363.941  203.156 203.156
10.1  Restricting Provision - Y - I L
10.2  Provision for Employee Benefits 363.941| - 363.9411 © 203:156 - 203.156
10.3  Other Provisions L » ) - R -
Xi.  -DEFERRED INCOME 23 258.297 | - | -~ 258.297 233873 - 233.873.
Xi. CURRENT PERIOD TAX LIABiLlTiES 24.a 1.086.137 |- - |  1.036.137 15364721 - 1.536.172
X DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24b o - ) -
XI¥. SUBORDINATED LOANS - 31 wl e I -

SUBTOTAL 349.440.609 349.440.609 326.896.202 - 326.896.202
XV.  LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERAT!ONS {Net) 26 = - - -
15.1 - SalePurpose . - [ -
15.2  Discontinued Operations Related N -~ - - -
Xvi. - SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 32 51.909.253 | --| 51.909.253| 34.398.768| --| 34.398.768

Shareholders’ Equity of the Parent Company 51.909.253 | - | 51.905.253 | 34.398.768 | - | 34.398.768
164 Paid-in Capital 32.4 25500.000 | -1 25500.000 8500.000 - 8.500.000
16.2  Capital Reserves 322 - - - - -
16.2.1 Share Premium - - B -
16.2.2 Profits on Share Cancelation - - O -
16.2.3 Other Capital Reserves -1 - - . -
16.3 - Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income or Expenses Non-Reclassifiable to S - - -

Profit or Loss
164 . Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income or Expenses Reclassifiable fo -1 - - - -

Profit or Loss !
16.5 - Profit Reserves 324 7.368.768 | - 7.368.768 9.404.326 - 9.404.326
16.5.1 Legal Reserves 1633551 -~ 1.633.551 699.138¢1 -- 699.138
16.5.2 ‘Statutory Reserves Y - ] - -
16.5.3 Extraordinary Reserves 5735217 - 5.735.217 8.705.188 | - 8.705.188
16.5.4 Other Profit Reserves J (- - - -
16.6 ~Profitor Loss 19.040.485 | -1 19.040485] 16494442 --| 16.494.442
18.6.1 Retained Profit or Loss 325 R R - - . -
16.6.2  Net Retained Profit or Loss for the Period 19.040.485( --| 19.040.485) 16.494.442 16.494 442

Shares Other Than Parent Company 326 8

TOTAL LIABILITIES 401.349.862 401.349.862 | 361.294.970 361.294.970




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI
STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS OF DECEMBER 31,2015

TURKISH LIRA (TRL)
Audited Audited
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS Current Period Prior Period
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

TRL FC Total TRL FC Total
L RISK OF FACTORING OPERATIONS ASSUMED - - - -
i RISK OF FACTORING OPERATIONS NOT ASSUMED 36.612.454 -| 36612454 30.562.090 §2.990 30.625.080
HL GUARANTEES RECEIVED 43.41.a | 1.603.111.905 | 26.833.992 | 1.620.945.897 | 948.217.639 | 22.603.048 | ©70.820.687
. GUARANTEES GIVEN 434 1.651.632 = 1.651.632 2147702 - 247.792
V. ‘COMMITMENTS _ 44 — R -
5.1 Irrevocable Commitments - - - -
152 . Revocable Commitments - - - - - -
521  Lease Commftments - - - - - -
52.1.1 Financial Leasing Commitments - - -~ - - -
5,2.1‘2” Operating Lease Commitments - - - - - -
522  Other - ; . ; ; -
53 Lending Commitments - - - - - -
54 Guarantees lssued in Favor of Customers - - - - - -

Vi, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . . - w
6.1 Deri&ative Fvi'n\ancia! instruments forCash Flow Hedges - - - - - -
6.1.1  Fair Value Hedge Risk Transactions - - - - - -
6.1.2  Cash Flow Hedge Risk Transactions - - - - - -
6.1.3  Foreign Operations Net Investment Risk Hedge Transactions - - - - - -
6.2  Trading Operations : . " - - - .
6.2.1  Fulure Trading Transactions - - - - - -
6.2.2  Swap Trading Transactions - - - - - -
6.2.3  Exchange Option Transactions - - - - - -

8.24  Future Trading Transactions - - - - -
6.2.5 ther - - - - -
Vil CUSTODY ASSETS 432 | 351.907.035 | 47.724.666 | 399.631.701 | 333.202.851 | 27.000.656 | 360.203.507
TOTAL STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 1.993.283.026 | 74.558.658 | 2.067.841.684 | 1.312.200.372 | 49.666.694 | 1.361.667.066




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI
PROFIT OR LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD DECEMBER 31, 2015

TURKISH LIRA (TRL)
Audited Audited
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Current Period Prior Period

Notes | January 01- D ber 31, 2015 | January 04 - December 31, 2014

i OPERATING INCOME 86.408.140 63.633.587
FACTORING INCOME 33 86.408.140 63.633.587

11 Interests Received from Factoring Recelvables 84.912.541 63.000.020
111 Reduced 70.436.418 57.386.217
1.1.2  Other 14.476.122 5.613.803
12 Fees and Commissions Recelved from Factoring Receivables 1.485.599 633.567
121 Reduced 1.438.945 621.303
122 Other 56.654 12.264
INCOME FROM FINANCING LOANS 34 - -

13 Interest Income from Financial Loans - -
14 Commission Income from Financial Loans - -
LEASING INCOME 35 - -

11 Financial Leasing Income - -
1.2 Operational Leasing Income - -
12 Fees and Commission Income on Leasing Operations - -
i FINANCING EXPENSES (-} 36 (47.218.209) (35.104.600)
2.4 Interest Paid for Loans Used {37.954.180) (29.576.107)
22 interest Paid for Liabilities from Factoring Transactions - -
23 Financial Leasing Expenses -
24 Interest Given for Issued Securities (6.100.350) (3.410.791)
25 Other Interest Expenses . - R -
26 Fees and Commissions Paid : : i (3.163.679) : (2.117.702)
. GROSS PROFIT AND LOSS (1+li) . - . ) 39.189.931 : 28.528.987
V. - OPERATING EXPENSES ¢ 37 {7.992.897) {6.484.640)
44 Staff Expenses ’ . . (5.358.427) ’ (4.401.108)
42 Expenses of Provisions for Termmahon Indemnities . {158.552) . (121.690}
43 Research and Development Expenses o - - -
44 - General Operaung Expenses - . . b . (2.439819) { i {1.937.650)
45 Other ’ {35.099) (24.192)
V. GROSS OPERATING PROFIT AND LOSS {141} . ' 31.197.034 : 22.044.347
Vi OTHER OPERATING INCOME Lo 38 : 7.199.209 2.877.290
61 Interest Received from Banks ’ : - ‘ 13 - - 2820
6.2  InterestReceived fom Reserve Repurchase Agreenients ' ) ; - -
63 interest Received from Securities : 100.882 » 806.252

6.3.1 Marketable Securifies in the Trade Book - -
63.2 Fair Value Difference FV Categorized as me t/Loss Statement ) ) -1 -
8.33 Financial Assets Ready to Sale . . :

6.3.4 Investments to be Held Until Maturity : - 100.982 806.252
64 Dividend Income B ' o ) -1 ’ -
65 Profit from Capital Market Transacbons : . . . o=
651  Derivative Financial Instruments Transactions™ . o - . =1

652 Other . ) ) .
66 Foreign Exchange Gams . . 7.008.300 ’ 1.802.850
67 Other. L . : ) 88914 65,528
Vil - SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR NON- PERFORMING RECEWABLES {} 39 C (7.829.157) {1.706.337)
Viil. - OTHER OPERATING INCOME (-} . 40 {6.785.923) ’ {2.379.344)

8.1 Impairment Losses on Securities : D
8.1.1 . Fair Value Difference FV Impairment Loss Categorized as Profit/ Loss Statement ) - -
81.2 - Financial Assets Ready to Sale ' = -
8.1.3 . investments to be Hetd Until Maturity . - -
8.2 Impairment Loss of Fixed Assets - -
82.1 impairment Loss of Tangible Fixed Assets . - -
8.2.2 impairment Loss of Assets Held for Sale and Fixed Assets Related fo Discontinued Operatlons - -
8.2.3 .- Special Assessment Impairment Loss -
824 lmpairment Loss of Other infangible Fixed Assets - -
8.2.5 :ImpairmentLoss of Subsidiaries, Affiliates and Joint Venture - =
83 Loss on Derivative Financial Transactions

84 Foreign Exchange Losses (6.785.823} (2.379.344)
85 Other - . -
X NET OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES (V+...+Vill} ' 23.781.163 20.635.956

X INCOME RESULTED FROM MERGES - -
XL PROFITILOSS ON NET MONETARY POSITION - -

X PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX (D{+X+Xf) 23.781.163 20.635.956
X, INCOME TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (3} . {4.740.678) {4.141.514)
13.1 - Current Tax Provisions 24¢ {4.780.605) {4.157.701)
13.2 {-Deferred Tax Cost Effectiveness {-) 24b (11.899) {5.736)
13.3 - " -Deferred Tax Income Effectiveness (+) - 24b 61,626 21.923
XY, | NETPROFIT-AND LOSS SUSTAINED ACTIVITIES {NET) (VEXVE} 19.040.485 16.494.442

XV, . INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - “
15.1 - “Income from Assets Held for Sale - - L
15.2  -Profit on Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlied Entities - -
15.3 . :Otherincome from Discontinued Operations -

XL LOSSFROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-} - -
161 - Expense on Assets Held for Sale - -
162 Loss on Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Jointly Controlled Entiies - .
18.3 .- Other Expenses from Discontinued Operations - -
XVIL - PRE:TAX PROFIT-AND LOSS ON DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES {(XV-XV]} - “
XVl TAX PROVISIONS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (%) - -
18.1 - Current Tax Provisions - -
182 Deferred Tax Cost Effectiveness (- - -
18.3  Deferred Tax Income Effectiveness (+} - -
XIX.  PROFIT/LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XViltXvilh - -
XX, MINITORY SHARES -

XX, NET PROFIY /LOSS {XV+XIX) 19.040.485 16.494.442
EARNINGS PER SHARE 4 1,02 1,94
Earnings Per Share from Continued Operations {Complete TRL} 1,02 1,94
Earnings Per Share from Discontinued Operations (Complete TRL) - -
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 1,02 1,94
Earnings Per Share from Continued Cperations {Complete TRL) 1,02 1,94

Earnings Per Share from Discontinued Operations (Complete TRL) - -




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKET]
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME SSTATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 01 - DECEMBER 31 2015 AND 2014

TURKISH LIRA (TRL)
Audited Audited

Current Period Current Period

January 01 - December | January 01 - December
Notes 31,2015 31,2014

CURRENT PERIOD PROFITILOSS 19.040.485 16.494.442

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

. Other accumulated comprehenswe income or expenses non-re-classifiable to profit or .
loss

"Revaluation increase / decrease of fixed tangible. assets ' ) - ' . -
Revaluation lncrease/de_crease of fixed intangible assets s . ] - B

Defined Benefit Plans Re-measurement Gains / Losses : S -

Shares not to be classified as profitioss from other comprehenswe incorne of investments
valuated by equity method . , .
Other comprehensive income elements not to be classified as other prof it or loss B - ' -

Taxes regarding other comprehensive i incame not to be reclassified as profitloss . ’ - ) -1
Tax income Jloss of the period ) S ) . - ) : -

Deferred tax income /loss ' - . : ) - . -

Other accumulated ¢omprehensive income or expenses classifiable to proﬁt or loss ' - . L
Foreign currency exchange dlfference ' - 7 -
Revaluation and/or classification eammgs/losses of financial assets ready for sale ‘ - -
Cash Flow Hedge Eamings / Losses » — -

Invesiment hedge eamings/osses related to foreign operations - -

Shares o be classified as profitfloss from other comprehensive income of investments vahiated
by equity method
Cther comprehensive income elements to be classified as other profit or loss ) - -

Taxes regarding other comprehensive income {o be reclassified as profitfioss - -
Tax income floss of the period - ) - -

Deferred tax income floss - -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - -
TOTAi.. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ' ’ » 19.040.485 16.494.442
Distribution of the Total Comprehensive Income

Minority Interest - -
Parent Company Shares 19.040.485 16.494.442
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 01 - DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

TURKISH LIRA (TRL)
Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period

Notes January 01 - December 31, 2015 | January 01 - December 31, 2014
A, CASHFLOWS OF MAIN OPERATIONS
1.1 Operating profit on assets and liabilities subject of main operation prior to change 25.144.110 26.929.025
1.1.1 Interests Received / Leasing Eamings 33 84.365.448 62.776.205
1.1.2 Interest Paid 27,36 (45.061.129) {26.142.865)
1.1.5 Fees and Commissions Received 3 1.495.599 633.567
1.1.6 Other eamings acquired 38, 40 (2.851.780) (1.080.257)
1.1.7 Collections from receivable on follow up accounted as loss 15 84.289 65.435
1.1.8 Cash payments fo staff and service providers 37 (7.597.677) (6.217.652)
119 Taxes Paid : 24 (6.290.640) {3.105.408)
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities " {47.358,759) {145.990.800)
1.2.1  Net (Increase} / Decrease in Factoring Receivables 11 (53.272.258) {143.304.466)
1.2.6 Net (Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets - 14,23,25 172984 - (3.123.113)
1.2.6 Net (Increase) / Decrease in Factoring Payables 11 436.936 . 178.556
1.2.8. Net (Increase)/ Decrease in Matured Debt 14, 24.d 5.312.021 210445
1.2.8 Net (Increase) / Decrease in Other Liabilities 29,3 - (9.442) 47.778
I NetCash Provided from/ (Used in) Operating Activities {22.215.649) {119.061.775)
B.  CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
2.3 Securities and Properties Purchased 21,22 (542.087) - {18.981)
24  Securities'and Properties Sold ) 21,22 - ) T 376
2.9 . Other Cash Flows Related fo Investment Activities . 7 6.005.036 | - (2.746.003) |-
B Nét Cash Used in !nvesting Activities 5.462.948 {2.764.608)
C.  CASHFLOWS RELATED TO FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
31 Cash provided by credits and securities issued 27,28 18.116.875 122.088.671
34  Dividend Payments (1.530.000) -
M.  NetCash Used in Financing Activities 16.588.875 122.088.671
V.  Currency Exchange Rate Difference’s Influence on Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets - o
v. Net Increase | (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents {165.825) 262.288
VI  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 6,8 563.330 301.042
Vil.  Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 6,8 397.505 563.330




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

1, ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi was established with the title of "Ak Factoring Hizmetleri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi” on September
18,1992. The title of the company has been decided to change by unanimous vote as "Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi" at the
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on October 12, 2012. The decision was announced in the Trade Registry
Gazette numbered 8183 on October 31, 2012 and the company's title was registered as "Ak Faktoring Anonim Sirketi",

The company operates at address which is "Blyiikdere Cad. Ozsezen Is Merkezi C Blok No: 126 Kat: 9 Esentepe, Sisli / Istanbul".
The main activity of the Company is fo provide facloring services fo industrial and commercial companies. The Company
continues their factoring activities in one geographical region (Turkey).

The sharéholding structure of the company is as follows:"

Decembef 31, 2015 " December 31, 2014 ,

" Amount % Amount %
Altin Has Holding A.S. ~— - > . % 100,00 25.499.625 - % 100,00 8.499.875
Inan Altinbas - ' - > 1 75 C o> 25
Hiiseyin Altinbas ) ‘ > 1 75 > 1 25
Abdiilhamit Yurt _ ' ' : >1 75 o>t 25
Atilla Keskin - ; : : > 75 51 - 25
VedatBayat .~ = . . > 75 > 25

% 100,00 25.500.000 % 160,06 8.500.000

As of December 31, 2015, the number of employees is 47. {December 31, 2014 -45).
2. BASES OF PRESENTATlON OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Basis of Presentation |

2.1.1. Applied Accounting Standards

The Company's activities are accounted for in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards within the scope of the
Communique on the Uniform Chart of Accounts and Explanatory Notes which will be applied to Financial Leasing, Factoring
and Financing Companies which is published in the Official Gazette dated December 24, 2013 and numbered 28861.

In accounting for activities, provisions of the regulations have been applied about prepared on the basis of "Financial Leasing,
Factoring and Financing Companies Law” which is published in the Official Gazette dated December 13, 2012, numbered 28496
and Accounting Practices and Financial Tables of Financial- Leasing, Factoring, and Financing Companies which is published in
Official Gazette dated December 24, 2013 and numbered 28861.

The Annex 1 of the Law No. 2499 was cancelled by the Decree No. 660 which is entered into force and fo be published in the
Official Gazette on November 2, 2011. And Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Institution {("Institution”) was
established. In preparation of the financial statements, Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial Reporting Standards
{("TAS / TFRS"} and related annex and interpretations ("TAS / TFRS") issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing
Standards Authority ("KGK"} have been {aken 2 basis.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless ctherwise stated)

A BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd}

2.1, Basis of Presentation (Cont'd)

2.1.2. Functional and Reporting Currency

The functional currency of the Company is the Turkish Lira (TL) and the reporting currency is also Turkish Lira (TL).

The Company's financial statements have been subject to inflation adjustments in accordance with "Turkish Accounting
Standard related fo Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” ("TAS 29"} until December 31, 2004. The indicators
that require inflation accounting application is stated to have been removed with general instruction issued by the Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA") dated April 28 2005 And the apphcatxon of inflation accounting has been -
+ terminated as of January 1, 2005.

21.3. Ad}ustment of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods

The Company's financial statements have been subject to inflation adjustments in accordance with “Turkish Accounting
Standard related to Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” ("TAS 29") until December 31, 2004. The indicators
that require inflation accounting application is stated to have been removed with general instruction issued by the Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA") dated Apm 28, 2005. And the apphcatron of mﬂahon accounting has been
terminated as of January 1, 2005. , :

| 2.14. Offseﬁmg :

Fmanc;a! assets and ixabll ties are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of fi nanoxat position when there is a
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a basis, or reahze the asset and
settle the liability szmultaneously

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

Significant changes in accounting policies and identified signiﬁcant accounting errors are applied, refrospectively and the prior
period financial statements are restated. The Company has applied their accounting policies consistent with the previous
financial year. ,

2.3 Chénges in the Accounting Estimates and Errors

If changes in accounting estimates are related to only one period, they are recognized in the period when changes are applied:
if changes in estimates are refated fo future periods. They are recognized both in the period where the change is applied and
future periods prospectively. Correction of error are considered by retrospectlvely and the prior period financial statements are
restated.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Reporting Standards requires that management is to apply
policies, to make decisions affected by reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses to make estimates and
assumptions. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and the assumptions underlying estimates are
constantly being reviewed. The updates to the accounting estimates are based on the period which is made the updates and on
subsequent periods affected by these updates.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKET]

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2, BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.4. Comparative information and Adjustment Financial Statements of Previous Period
The current period financial statements and footnotes are presented comparatively with the prior period financial statements and
footnotes. In order to comply with the presentation of the current period financial statements, comparative information is reclassified
when it is necessary.
The accounting principles are applied by the Company and showed consistency with accounting principles applied in previous
periods. The estimates and the assumptions underlying estimates are constantly being reviewed. The updates to the accounting
estimates are based on the period which is made the updates and on subsequent periods affected by these updates.

-25  New and Revised Turkish Accountmg Standards

aj The amendments in TAS affecting the amounts and footno.tes' reported in the ﬁhanciai statements

‘None.

b) Standards effective after the year of 2015 and do not have any impact on the Company s fmancral statements, - ‘

_amendments and mterpretatmns to existing standards

TAS19 (Amendment) _ Employee Benefits 1

Annual Improvements retated to 2010 2012 Term TFRS 2, TFRS 3, TERS 8, TFRS 13, TAS 16 and TAS 38,
-~ TAS24,TFRS9,TAS 37, TAS391 - -

Annuaf improvem_ents related to 2011-2013 Term TFRS 3, TFRS 13, TAS 401 '

11t's valid as of financial periods beginning after June 30, 2014.
TAS 18 (Améndmems) Employee Benefits |
This change clarifies how fo related with service period when the contributions made by employees or third parties are connected

to service periods. In addition, the company is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost for
the service provided for the service, when the amount of contribution is an independent from service year.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
25 New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (Cont'd)

b)  Standards, effective after the year of 2015 and do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards {Cont'd)

Annual Improvements related to 2010-2012 Term

TFRS 2: TFRS 2 amends the definitions of 'vesting condition' and ‘market condition' and adds definitions for ‘performance
condifion’ and 'service condition.

-TFRS 3: TFRS 3 c!anf ies that contmgent consideration that is ciassn’ ed asan asset ora habtlxty shall be measured at fair value
at each reporting date.

" TFR5 8: TFRS § reqmr'esan entity to disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments and clarifies that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reportab!e segments assets
_ 1o the entity's assets if the segment assets are reported regularly :

TFRS 13: TFRS 13 clarifies that issuing TFRS 13 and amendmg TFRS 9 and TAS 39 did not remove the ability to measure
shori-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at the!r invoice amounts thhout discounting if the effect of not
discounting is lmmatenal : .

TAS 24: TAS 24 c!anf ies that an entxty providing key managerrent personnel services to the reportmg entxty or to the parent of
the report ng ente{y Is a related party of the reporting entity. : ,

Annual lmprovements for the 2010-2012 Period have led to amendments inTFRSS, TAS 37 and TAS.39 standards respectively.
Annua! !mprovements related fo 2011-2013 Term '

TFRS 3: TFRS 3 clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

TFRS 13: TFRS 13 clarifies that the scope of the portfolio exception defined in paragraph 52.

TAS 40: TAS 40 clarifies that determining whether a specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as
defined in TFRS 3 as defined in TAS 40 requires the separate application of both standards independently of each other.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.5 New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (Cont'd)
c) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Company has not applied the following new and revised TFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Amendments to TFRS 8 and TFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of TFRS 9 and Transition
- , Disclosures

Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38 : ' Acceptable methods of deprec:az‘lon and amortization 1
Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 41 Agriculture, Bearer Plants ©
with TAS 1, TAS 17, TAS 23, TAS 36-and TAS 40 '

' Amendments to TFRS 11 and TFRS 1 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interesz‘s in Joint Operaz‘;ons7
Annual Improvements related to 2011-2013 Term - TFRS12

Amendments to TAS1 - . Explanation Provisions 2 :

- Annual Improvements related to 2012- 2014 Term TFRS 5, TFRS 7, TAS 34, TAS 192
Amendments to TAS 27 Equity Method in Individual Financial Statements 2
Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28 : Asset Sales or Investments beiween Investor and Affiliate

' , : - or Joint Venture ?
Amendments to TFRS 10, TFRS 12, and TAS 28 : ~ Investment Enterprises: Applfcaz‘ion or Consolidaz‘lon’
- ) s - : Exemptions 2 - :

TFRS 14 A : e Deferred Accounts Basea’ on Edmng 2

1 Amendmenis are valid at accounting period which starts after December 30, 2015 accountmg period. .
2 Amendments are valid at accounting period which starts after January 1, 2016 accounting period.

TFRS 9 Finahcial Instruments

TFRS 9, issued in November 2009, introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets,
TFRS 9 was amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for de-recognition.

Amendments to TFRS 8 and TFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures
For TFRS 9, the mandatory implementation date has been delayed but not before the date of 01 January, 2018.
Amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38 Acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization

This amendment clarifies that that a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated by an activity that includes
the use of an asset is not appropriate for property, plant:and equipment, and iintroduces 2 rebuttable presumption that an
amortization method that is based on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an intangible asset is
inappropriate, which can only be overcome in limited circumstances where the infangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue, or when it can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
highly correlated. The amendment also adds guidance that expected future reductions in the selling price of an itfem that was
praduced using an asset could indicate the expectation of technological or commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn,
might reflect a reduction of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.5 New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (Conf’d)
¢) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

TAS 16 and TAS 41 (Amendments) with TAS 1, TAS 17, TAS 23, TAS 36 and TAS 40 (Changes) Agricultures: Carrier
plants

This standard ' carrier plants ' instead of TAS 41 standard, tangible assets under the classification after initial recognition and
registration to enable the measured according to the cost or revaluation basis specifies be dealt with under the TAS 16 standard.
This standard also ' bearing plants "used for the production or supply of agricultural products likely {o be sold to give the product
‘more than one term as agricultural products other than expected and insignificant residual sales of living is very low is defined
as a plant. This raised the standard of the products bearing plants is covered by the TAS 41 standard is also mdlcated
Changes in TAS 16 and TAS 41 resulted inchanges in TAS 1, TAS 17 TAS 23, TAS 36 and TAS 40

Amendments to TFRS H ve TFRS 1 Acceuntmg for Acquns;tlons of Interests in Jomt Operattons

This standard, the acquirer shares constxtutmg a Jomt business acttvxty

® vExcept for the violation: of the rules set outin TFRS 11, TFRS 3 and apphcanon of all accountzng transactions related
to other desxgn Iooated m a business combination, and ' :

s TFRS 3 and other des;gn predicts the mformatson requ ired io be dxsoiosed refatmg to.the business combma’ﬁon in-
‘ accordance thh the description.
This change f:o TFRS 11 ied to ehanges in the standerd of TFRS1 notified.
Annuél lmprovements related 0 2011-2013 Term |
TFRS 1: This change clarifies which versions of TMS are o be uéed7 when the entity applies TMS for the first time.
Amendmenfs to TAS 1 ‘Explanation Provisions’

These changes include narrow-focus improvements in the areas of obligation that are required to present financial statements
of financial statement preparation.

Annual Improvements related to 2012-2014 Term

TFRS 5: TFRS 5 introduces additional disclosures when a fixed asset held for sale is classified as held for sale asset to the
partners or vice versa and the classification of an asset as held for distribution by the partners is terminated.

TFRS 7: TFRS 7 provides additional information whether a service contract is a fransferred asset and the clarification of the
settlement process in the interim financial statements.

TAS 34: TAS 34 clarifies ‘Interim financial reporting’ regarding disclosure of information.

Annual Improvements for the period 2012-2014 led to amendments in the relevant areas of TAS 19 standard.

Sayfa 15/58




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.5 New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards {Cont'd)

¢} New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Conf’d)
Amendments to TAS 27, ‘Separate financial statements’ on the equity method

These amendments allow entifies to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements.

Amendments to TFRS 10, ‘Consohdated financial statements’ and TAS 28, ‘!nvestments in assocsates and  joint
ventures

The main consequence of the amendrﬁents is that a full gain or loss is recognized when a fransaction involves a business
~ (whether itis housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsnd;ary

TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28 (Amendments) lnvestment Operat:ons Apphcat!on of Consolidation Exemptxons

This amendment clarifies the _problems arising during the i mplementa’uon of the consolidation exoepnon of lnvestment
enterprises as fonows ,

s The exceptﬁonai situation regard ng the preparat;on of the fmancsa! statements for the mtermedlary Company, even
when an investment enterprise evaluates all subsidiaries at fair value, is vahd for the parent company, whichisa -
subsidiary of the investment enterprise. =

¢ Inthe case of a subsidiary that provides services related to the parent company's mvestment enterprise, this subsndlary
should not be included in the consolidation.

e Where an associate or a joint venture is accounted for by the equity method, it may contmue to use the fair value
measurement that it applies for investing in an investment enterpnse in a non-aiming investor or shares in a business
partnership.

s An investment enterprise that measures all of ifs subsidiaries at fair value, provides the disclosures required by the
TFRS 12 standard regarding to investment enterprises.

TFRS 14 Regulétory Deferral Accounts

TFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts’ permits first~time adopters fo continue fo recognize amounts related to rate regulation
in accordance with their previous TFRS requirements when they adopt TFRS.

TFRS 14 has led to amendments to the TFRS 1 standard.

These standards, changes and improvements are assessed on the Company's financial condition and the likely impact on its
performance.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY uniess otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Revenue Recognition
Interest, commission and fee income from factoring transactions are recognized on an accrual basis unearned portions of interest
income from factoring transactions are also shown on an accrual basis. The doubtful factoring receivables are accounted for by
deducting receivable receivables.
b. Financial Instruments
Financial Assets: -
Financiéi assetsvclaésiﬁed as financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss and ﬁnancia{ assets other than those at fair value

through profit or loss are accounted for at the fair market value and the total amount of the expenditures that can be directly
related to the purchase transaction. As a result of the purchase or sale of financial assets that are subject to the delivery condition

of the investment instruments in accordance thh the penod determined by the reiated market are recorded or removed from -

recorded at the transactton date.

Financial assets are classified as "fi nanc;!al assets at fair value through prof it or loss", "investments held-to-maturity”; “available-
for-sale financial assets” and "loans and receivables'. The classification is determmed at the time of initial recogm’non dependmg
on the purpose and nature of the acquzs;tron of the f nancxal asset. : :

Effectlve Interest Method

The effective interest method is the valuation of the financial asset at amortized cost and the redistribution method in which the
relevant interest income is related. Effective interest rate which reduces the estimated cash receipts to be collected oveér the
expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropnate for a shorter period of time to the net present value of the related
financial asset.

Income related o financial assets other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are calculated by using the
effective interest method.

Fair value through proﬁt/ loss assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are which held for frading purposes and not acquired for trading purposes
and financial .assets that are accounted for in this category during initial recognition.” Financial assets are classified in the
category, when a financial-asset is acquired for short-term withdrawal or when itis concluded that a more accurate accounting
presentation will be achieved during initial accounting. Financial assets that are derivative financial instruments that are not
designated as an effective hedge againstfinancial risk are also classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or foss.

Private sector investments based on credit, which are included in financial investments, are classified as trading securities for
purchase and sale. Valuation gains and losses. are recognized at fair value fo be reflected in income statements in their
subsequent valuation. Investments are where there is no reliable fair value, are valued at the discounted cost value. The
discounted cost is calculated by the effective interest rate method.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-malurity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates

that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold fo maturity. Subsequent fo initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.6, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

b. Financial Instruments (Cont'd}

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

Company that are traded in an active market are classified as being available- for-sale financial assets and are stated at
fair value. The Company also has investments in unquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market but
are also classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at fair value. Similarly, investments in unquoted equity
investments that are not traded in an active market but are also classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated
at cost since the fair value of these investments cannot be measured reliably. Gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve with the
exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method and forexgn exchiange gains and
losses on monetary assets, which are recognized in profit or loss. .

Available-for- saie monetary assets denommated in fore!gn currencies are determmed on the bascs of the currency in whrch the
fair value is expressed and it is converted from the valid currency at the end of the reporting period. Foreign exchange gains /
(losses) recognized in the income statement are determined based on the monetary asset's amortized cost value Other foreign
exchange gams and losses are recogmzed in other comprehenswe income. :

) Factormg Recervabies and Other Rec:ewabies

Factori ing recewables and other recewab!es are accounted at then‘ fair value at the date of mtsa! reoogmtmn dunng the reporting
periods after the first registration date, other receivables other than factoring receivables are stated at amortized cost by using
the effective interest method. Factoring transactions are presented with their carrying values in subsequent reporting periods.
During the first registration of factoring receivables, the predsction is that the registered values approxtmate to its fair value due
to the consideration of the discount.

Specific provisions and free provisions are reserved for factoring rec"eivables in accordance with the "Regulation on Accounting
Applications and Financial Tables of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companres“ published in the Official Gazette
No.28861 dated 24 December 2013 by BRSA.

Impairment in Financiai Assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed whether any indication that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets has suffered an impairment at each balance sheet date. When the occurrence of
one ormore events after the initial recognition of the financial asset and when there is an objective evidence that the related
impairment loss is impaired as a result of the impact on the estimated future cash flow of the related financial asset or group of
assets that can be reliably estimated, is depreciated and impairment loss occurs. The impairmentloss for loans and receivables
is the difference between the present value of the expected future cash flows which is discounted at the financial asset's original
interest rate, 'and the carrying amount.

Except factoring receivables, the impairment is directly deducted from the carrying amount of the related financial asset in all
other financial assels. In case the receivables cannot be coliected, the respective amount is deducted from the provision account.
Changes in the provision account are recognized in the income statement.

Except for available-for-sale equity instruments, if the impairment loss decreases in the following period and if the decrease can
be associated with an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss, in case the impairment of the investment has
never been accounted at the date on which the previously recognized impairment loss impairment is to be cancelled, it is
cancelled in profit/ loss as not exceeding the amount of the amortized cost.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKET]

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

b. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with maturity of less than three months from the date of acquisition, including cash

and deposits in banks. This caption also includes other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
~amounts of cash and specific demand deposits, The book value of these assets approximates their fair value.

Derivative FmanCIal Instruments and Financial L;ab;hty Protection Accounting |

The activities of the Company primarily expose the entity and expose it o financial nsks that are subject to changes in interest

rates. The company use derivative financial instruments (mainly exchange rate forward' contracts) in order to manage the
financial risks associated with currency and interest rate fluctuations related fo future foreign currency and credit transactions.

- Derivative fi nancxa! instruments are recorded at fair-value at the date-of the contract and are accounted for at fair value at - .

subsequent reporting periods. Derivative financial instruments are recognized as held for trading because all necessary
conditions are not fulfilled in order to be recognized as an item in hedge of hedge accounting, while providing hedge accounting. -
-And the gain or loss realized by means of the related instruments is assoc;ated wzth the profit and loss statement :

Fmancza! Ltabmtxes

~ The Companys fi naneia! habnlmes and equzty instruments are cEassmed in accordance thh the defi mt&on of a contractuaf
arrangement, a financial obligation and a tool based on equity. The contract representing the right of remaining assefs after

deducting all debts of the Company, is a fi nancnaf instrument based on equrty , S :

The accounting polxmes apphed for based upon certain financial liabilities and equ:ty mstruments are given below

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through proﬁt or loss or other financial liabilities.

Fair Value Difference Financial Liabilities Reflected in Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value fhrough profit or loss are accounted for at fair value and they are revalued at the balance sheet

date at fair value at each reporting period. The change in fair value is recognized in the income statement. Net gains or losses

recognized in the income statement also include the interest paid for such financial liability.

Other Financial Liabiliies

Other financial liabilities, including financial liabilities, are initially reeegnized at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabiliies are accounted with the interest rate calculated over the effective interest rate in subsequent periods
and amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is the calculation of the amortized cost of the financial liability and the way in which the related
interest expensg is related to the redistribution. Effective interest rate which reduces the estimated cash receipts to be collected
over the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, for a shorter period of time to the net present value of
the related financial assetl.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cont'd)

2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

¢ Tangible Fixed Assefs and Depreciation

Tangible assets are reflected accumulated depreciation and permanent value losses by deduction from the carrying value
of the items accounted for using the effective interest method as of 31 December 2004 for items that were acquired before

01 January 2005 and the purchase cost value for items purchased after 31 December 2004.

Depreciation is amortized on a straight-line bas:s over the estimated useful !tves of the tangible assets. Estimated usefu |IV€S of
the related assets are as foitows :

Years

Fumiture and ﬁxtures o » T ‘ _ : 5410

Profit or loss arising from deductlon of tangible assets are determined by comparing the amounts re{:overed and the amounts
collected. And ;t is reflected in related i income and expense accounts in the current period.

Costs of provndmg new products or services including costs of opening a new actwity, advertising costs; costs to do business
in a new location or with a new customer segment including training cost of staff; costs such as general management costs
cannot be directly associated with the asset, thus, not included in the acquisition cost due to the fact that they are not included
in the purchase price of the tangible asset and because the assef is not putin place to brmg itinto the necessary position and :
» s’catus 50 that lt can operate in the direction of ‘ihe management's objectwes v

d. Intanglble Assefs and Deprec:atlon

_ The infangible assets are taken into the financial statements in according with the criteria of being identifiable, having control
over the related resource and the existence of an economic benefit expected to be obtained in the future. In this framework,
expenditures related to training activities, expenditures related fo adverfising and promotional -activities, partially or fully
reorganization expenditures and expenditure on initial activities, except those that can be included in the cost of tangible assets
are taken into financial statements as expense when they are accrued. ' -

e. Impairment of Assets

The impairment fest is applied when it is not possible to recover the carrying amount for assets subject to repayment or when
events occur. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the big one of the fair value or value in use after deduction of the selling costs. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level where the identifiable cash flows are present {cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets subject to impairment are reviewed at each reporting date for possible cancellation of impairment.

f.  Capital Increases

Capital increases from existing shareholders are approved and registéred at annual general meetings and they are accounted
over their nominal values.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.8, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
g. Provisions for severance payment

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made o emplovees refiring or involunarily leaving the
Company. Such payments are considered as being part of defined refirement benefit plan as UMS 19 {revised) “Employee
Benefits” ("UMS 197).

. The retirement pay liability recognized in the statement of financial position is calcuiated according to the nét present value of
the estimated. future salary obligations of all employees due to retirement and reflected in the financial statements. All actuarial
losses and gains are accounted for under other comprehensxve income, :

h Prows:ons, Conimgent Assets and L:ab:l:t:es

Provxsxons are recognized when the Company has a present obl;ga’uon asa resuit of a past event, and it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be} made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured.using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision' are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognized as an asset if itis v:rtua!!y certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivabie
can be measured refiably.

i, Borrowmg Costs
All borrowing costs are recordéd in the income statement for the periods in which are incurred.

j The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates |
The financial statements of each Company is presented in the currency of the primary economic enviroriment in which the entity
operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity

are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY).

The exchange rates used by the Company as of December 31, 2015 and December, 31 2014 are as follows:

TRY/USD TRY/EUR ' TRY/GBP
December 31, 2015 : 2,9076 3,1776 4,3007
December 31, 2014 : 2,3189 2,8207 ‘ 3,5961

A foreign currency fransaction should be recorded initially at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Assets and
liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are franslated to Turkish Liras (TRY) at the buying rate of TCMB at
the date of that balance sheet.

k. Earnings per Share

In Turkey, companies can increase their capital by distributing "bonus shares" they distribute from their previous years' profits
to their shareholders. Such "bonus share” distributions are treated as issued shares in earnings per share calculations.

Accordingly, the weighted average number of shares used in these calculations has been determined takmg info account the
refrospective effects of such stock distributions. 7\
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2, BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A Subsequent Events

Events after the balance sheet date comprise any events between the balance sheet date and the date of authorization of the
financial statements for issue, even if any events after the balance sheet date occurred subsequent to the announcement on
the Company’s profit or following the publicly disclosed financial information.

The Company restates its financial statements if such adjusting subsequent events arise.
m. Finance Leasing -
Leasing - The Company as Lessee

Leases are classified as fmance !eases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanttaﬂy all the nsks and rewards of
ownershrp to the §essee All other leases are c!assn‘xed as operatlng leases. '

Acqwred assets, lease, rental, or at the date the fair value of the asset at the lower of the present value of the minimum
lease payments is activated by using. The corresponding liability fo the lessor is shown in the balance sheet as a financé
~ lease obligation. Finance lease payments finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation are divided as to the
payment of the principal that provides, and thus allows us to calculate interest on the balance remaining principal of the
debt at afixed rate. Financial expenses the Company's general policy details, which include financing costs capitalized within
the stope of the above except for the portion of the borrowmg are recognized in profit or loss. Contmgent rents are recorded as
an expense in the periodin wmch they are mcurred

n. - Taxation

Income fax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currenﬂy payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are recorded using substantially enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences
between book and tax bases of assets and liabilities. The subsidiaries of the Company have deferred tax assets resulting from
tax loss carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences, all of which could reduce taxable income in the fuiure, '

Deferred tax assets and liability are not recognized in which case arising from-initial recognition of goodwili or an assel/liability
{except business combinations) which, at the time of the transaction, does not affect either the accounting or the taxable profit.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Cont'd)
2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont’d)
n Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and
interests in joint arrangements, are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in
the foreseeable future and that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets or a portion of the
deferred tax asset will allow to obtain the full benefits of sufficient taxable income to the extent that itis not possrble reduce -
the carrying value of deferred tax: assets

Deferred taxes assets resulted from these types of mvestments and shares are calculated under the condition that it has the -
high probability that the related differences will be extinct in the future and the adequate profit will be gain to exploit these -
differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

 asset is realized or the liability is seitled, based on fax rates/!aws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the balance sheet date The measurement reflects the entity's expectations, at the end of the reporting penod astothe manner ~
in which the carrying amount of its assets and lrabrlrtres will be recovered or settled .

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities can only be offset in the statement of financial position if the entity has the legal
right to settle current tax amounts on a net basis and the deferred tax amounts are levied by the same taxing authority on the -
same entrty or drﬁ‘erent entities that intend fo realize the asset and setfle the lrabrhty at the same time. ,

!tems which are essocrated with’ rtems recegmzed drrectly in equrty or accounted as liabilifies or current fax, except for those
arising from initial recognition of business combinations and deferred tax are accounted as expense or income in the income
statement.

The fax effect is taken into account in {he business combination, in the calculation of goodwill or in determining the excess of
the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the acquire rdentrf able assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary.

. Cash flow statement

In the cash flow statement, cash flows for the period in a format that is classified according o the investment and financing
activities. Cash flows from operating activities represent the cash flows of the Company's operations. Cash flows related fo
investing activities shows the Company's investment activities (asset investments and financialinvestments). Cash flows relating
to financing activities represent the resources used in the Company's financing activities and the repayment of these funds.
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd}

2.6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

0. Related Party

The ability of a party to be considered as a related party to the Company depends on the following criteria:

(a) The subject party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries:

(i) Has control or joint control over the reporting entity; (including subsidiaries and affiliates in the same business segment
subsidiaries) _

{if} has significant mﬂuence over the reportmg entity; or

{ifi} has joint control over the reporting entity,
{b) The party is a subsidiary of the entity; '
(¢} The party has a business partnership that the entity is a 1omi venture;
(d) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity;
() The party is a close family member of any individual referred to in (a) or (d); °
-+ (f)- The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or under significant influence, or in which any individual referred to
in {d) or (e) has significant voting rights, directly or indirectly, or

(g) It requires that the entity has benefit plans that are prov;ded to the employees of the entity or an entrty thatis a related party
of the entity after they | eave the company. .

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, servzces or obhgatrons between related parties, regardiess of whether a -
price is charged. In the following fi nanoxai statements, the shareholders of the Company, its affiliates and the companies
associated with them their key managers. and other known groups are referred {0 as related parties.

p.  Segment reporting

Reporting of Financial Information by Segments is reporting in accordance with different kinds of products and services produced
financial information and different geographic regions where the business operates about the better understanding of the past
performance of the enterprises by the financial statement users, the better assessment of risks and yields and being able to
make a more accurate decision about the enterprise as a whole.

r.  Government incentives and Grants

All government grants, including grants non-monetary government stated at fair value, reasonable assurance can be obtained
by businesses will be fulfilled and the grants by the company s requirements for obtaining recognized in the financial statements
when they are incurred.

it may be waived loans obtained from the state, in the event there is a reasonable assurance that the company will fulfill the
conditions of the waiver.is accepted as a government grant. The Company does not have any incentives or granis as of 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

s. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

i) Non-current assets held for sale
If the company intends to purchase a fixed asset and if the sale is likely to occur within 12 months, the related asset is classified
as held for sale in the statement of financial position. Equipment held for sale are vaiued at the lower of carrying amount or fair

value. Recoverability of the carrying amount is measured not by the use of the asset but by sale.

Assets received as collateral by the Company are classified as held for sale after their acquisition, when it comes to reducing
the cash collection ability of the funds used.

Sayfa 24 /58




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
2.8. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)
s.  Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations (Cont’d)
if) Discontinued operations
An entity is a party to a binding sales contract for almost all of the assets that can be direclly attributed to the discontinued
operation or approval of a detailed and formal plan by the board of directors or similar managing body concerning the suspension
or if an announcement is made about the related plan, Public disclosure is made.
Related provisions are complied with in the scope of impairment of assets in discontinued operations on the bas&s of financial
statements and valuation principles, provisions, contingent assets and liabilities, tangible assets, and beneﬂts The Company _
has no discontinued operations as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
None. (31 December 2014 - None).
4, JOINT VENTURES
None. (31 December 2014 - None).
5. SEGMENT REPORTING
None. (31 December 2014 - None).

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND THE CENTRAL BANK

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
7 TRY Other_ TRY Other
Cash 1.765 - 6.250 L -
1.765 us 6.250 -

7. FAIR VALUE DIFFERENCES REFLECTED to PIL (NET)

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
TRY Other TRY Other
Private sector bond cost ' - oo 5.831.704 -
Interest income accrual - - 86.866 -
5.918.370 -
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

7. BANKS
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
TRY Other TRY Other
Demand deposit 392.878 2.862 557.080 -
Time deposit - - - -
392.878 557.080

2.862

8. | RECEIVABLES FROM RE\(ERSE REPO TRANSACﬂONS |
- None. (Decembér 31,2014 - None.) | |
9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE {Net)
Noné. {Deoember 31, 20%4 —None.) j
10. FACTORING RECE!VABLES { PAYABLES

& Faéforing Receivables |

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014 -

TRY Other TRY Other
Discounted factoring receivables , ' 327.809.268 - 322.534.340 -
Other factoring receivables . ‘ 63.650.485 14.746.930 36.135.152  4.237.799
Restructured factoring receivables 346.500 - 546.500 -
Interest income accrual of factoring receivables 1.726.476 - 991.722 -
Uneamned interest income from factoring receivables (-} (17.967.301) - (17.848.601) (43.642)
375.565.428 | 14.746.930 342.350.113  4.194.157
Maturity distribution of factoring receivables:
Between3  Between 1
' , Upto Upto monthsand wmonthand

December 31, 2015 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Total
Factoring receivables 6.810.683 109.280.120 247.616.245 26.605.310 390.312.358

Between3d Betweent

Upto Upto months and month and
December 31, 2014 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Total
Factoring receivables 6.677.491 107.218.124 219.067.241 13.590.414 346.553.270
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71. FACTORING RECEIVABLES / PAYABLES ~ cont’d
a. Factoring Receivables - cont'd
The details of factoring receivables according to the sectors are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Sector Amount ('000) Amount ('000)
Construction 121.050 121.025
Textile and textile products industry » - - 41.840 43.193
Transport vehicles industry: : o : ' ' 41,198 ' .. 25935
Other manufacturing industry : : S _ ' 30.643 - 24.999
Wholesale and retail trade services ’ o - - 27.364 _ 12.583
Other social and personal services -~ | 24483 19475
Removing mines that produces energy - ; : 23.295 16.595
Hotels and restaurants (tourism) : o T 21.879 - 15,629
Rubber and plastic products industry : 13.172 42
Food, beverage and tobacco industry ' " 11.241 7.757
Transport, storage and communication : , 10964 ' 16.277
Metal main industry and processed material production - - 10.061 - 24,501
- Other non-metalicindustry ~ - AR B 7975 : 4630

Leather and leather products industry . v ‘ - 5558 6.022
Chemical and chemical produbts and synthetic industry 5438 2.704
Electrical and optical appliances industry ' S —_ 5087 3.730
Agriculture : ' ‘ : 4415 16.000

The paper and paper products industry o 3.121 109
Machinery and equipment industry 196 240
408.280 364.446

b. | Factoring Payables

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the details of short-term factoring payables are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31,2014
TRY Other TRY ~Other
Factoring payables ' 702.259 - - 265.323 -
702.259 - 265.323

Factoring payables represent amounts that have been collected on behalf of the factoring customers and which have not yet
been deposited into the accounts of the related factoring customers.

12. FINANCE CREDITS

None. (December 31, 2014 — None.)
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13. RECEIVABLES /PAYABLES FROM LEASING TRANSACTIONS
None. (December 31, 2014 - None.)

14. OTHER RECEIVABLES PAYABLES

a) Other Receivablies

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

TRY Other TRY Other
_ Miscellaneous receivables 11.832.088 - - - 1626430 -
BSMV from customers 1.268.727 - 1.204.261 -
Other 563.361 - 422.169 -
1.832.088 1626430

b} Other Payables

* December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

TRY = Other TRY Other
Miscellaneous debs 5.559.242 . 284,226 -
Payables to sellers 5.557.371 - 283.637 -
Due to related parties (Not 42.2) - 5478126 - .246.225 "
Debts fo other parties 79.245 - 37.412 -
Due to personnel 1.871 = 589 -
5.559.242 284.226

14. NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the details of the non-performing factoring receivables and provision of the

Company are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

TRY Other TRY Other

Non-performing receivables 14.560.403 - 5.581.339 -

Special provisions {-} {8.629.410) - {2.153.402) -
Non-performing receivables, net 5.930.993 3.427.937
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15. NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES - cont'd

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Total non- Total non-

performing performing

factoring factoring
receivables  Provision receivables  Provision
Overdue within 1-3 months 811.912 {40.595) - -
Overdue within 3-6 months 216.615 (43.815) 4.290.166 (939.433)
Overdue within 6-12 months - ‘ 9.973.752 - {4.986.876) 432,618 (355.414)

Overdue within 1 years and more . . o 3.558.124  (3.558.124) 858.555 (858.565)

14.560.403  (8.629.410) 5.581.339  (2.153.402)

| The movement of provision for factoring receivables as of 31 December 2015_ and 31 December 2014 is as follows:

December ﬁecember 7
34, 2015 31,2014

Opening balance, January 01 . R (2453402)  (512.500)
Expenses for the period (Note 39) - ‘ , - o (7.829.157)  (1.706.337)
' Transferred receivables () ‘ o o R 1.268.860 -
Cancelled provisions (Note 38} - : , ' 84.280 65.435
Closing balance , (8.629.410)  (2.153.402)

(*) The Company has transferred its factoring receivables to " Final Varik Yénetim A.S. " which were booked as provision totally
before and has no possibility to collect. '

16. DERIVATIVE AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
None. (December 31, 2014 - None.) |

17. INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY (Net)

None. {(December 31 , 2014 - None.)

18. SUBSIDIARIES (Net)

None. (December 31, 2014 ~ None.)

19. JOINT VENTURES (Net)

None. {December 31, 2014 ~ None.)

20. AFFILIATES (Net)

None. (December 31, 2014 - None.)

Sayfa 29/ 58




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

21. TANGIBLES (Net)

Movaments of property, plant and equipment for the period 01 January - 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Furniture
Cost and fixtures
January 01, 2014 279.701
Additions : , ‘ 12.092
- Disposals (-} ‘ ' ~ . _ ’ (590)
December 31, 2014 : ' ) v 291.203
Additions - D o - 542087
Disposals (-) o , ‘ o -
December 31, 2015 ' ' — ’ 833290
Accuvmuiated de'preciatich ' ' : : '
January 01,2014 ' R 3 © 83.411
Depreciation expense = . - | B o o ' : © 63.944
" Disposals {-) ‘ o ‘ - {214)
December 31, 2014 ‘ 147441
Depreciation expense ‘ ’ 148.145
Disposals (-} ’ ’ ’ -
December 31, 2015 295.286
Het registered value :
January 01,2014 196.250
December 31,2014 144.062
December 31, 2015 538.004

Sayfa 30 /58 b




AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

22. INTANGIBLES (Net)

Movements of intangibles for the period 01 January - 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Cost Rights
January 01, 2014 225,290
Additions 6.889
Disposals (-) -
December 31, 2014 : ' v B 232479
Addiions - o . -
Disposals (-} - L o -
December 31,2015 B : - 232179
Accumu!a’ted Depreciéﬁon : ‘ _ : o _
January 01, 2014 ‘ . 16.302
Additions - - S 57.162
Disposals () =~ ' : v ' ” - -
December 31,2014 | R 133.464
Additions - | | | | 52.424
Disposals (-} : ‘ , ’ '
December 31, 2015 185.888
Net registered value

January 01, 2014 148.988
December 31,2014 v ' 98.715
December 31, 2615 46.291
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23. PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

Prepaid expenses

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

TRY Other TRY Other
Prepaid interest expenses 1.888.579 - 2.669.030 -
Other 331.782 - 271.491 -
2.220.361 - 2.940.521 o

Deferred Income December 31,2015 - December 31,2014
‘ ' TRY = Other TRY Other
Commission income collected for cash : 258.297 L - 233.873 -

258.207 . 233873

24, TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
a) - Corporatetax

‘In Turkey, the corporation tax rate of the fiscal year 2015 is 20% (31 December 2014: 20%). Corporation tax is payable ata”
rate of 20% on the fotal income of the Company after adjusting for certain disallowable expenses, exempt income (exemption
for participation in subsidiaries, exemption for investment incentive allowance efc.} and allowances (such as research and
development expenditure allowances). No further tax is payable unless the profitis distributed.

The Law on the Amendment to the Tax Procedural Law, the Income Tax Law and the Corporate Tax Law No. 5024 published in
the Official Gazetie on 30 December 2003, income or corporation’s taxpayers who determine their eamings on a balance sheet
basis prepares their financial statements by adjusting the inflation since January 01, 2004. According to the law, for making inflation
adjustment, the cumulative interest rate (DIE TEFE increase rate} of fast 36 months exceeding %100 and last 12 months (DIE TEFE
increase rate) exceeding %10. Inflation adjustment was not made for-2008, 2009 and 2010 as these conditions were not met.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident corporations are not subject
to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding tax at the rate of 15% (31 December 2014: 15%). An
increase in capital via issuing bonus shares is not considered profit distribution and thus does not incur withholding tax.

Companies declare their advance tax returns at 20% (2014; 20%) on their quarterly financial profits and pay until the 14th day
of the second month following that period and pay {ill the 17th day. The temporary tax paid during the year shall be deducted
from the corporation tax that will be calculated on the tax declaration of the institutions that will be given in the following year. If
the temporary tax amount paid remains in spite of the indictment, this amount can be refunded, or any other financial debt to

the state can be deducted.

There are many exemplions in Corporate Tax Law regarding cerpbraﬁons. Those related to the Company are explained below:

Exemption for Domestic Participation Gains:

Dividend gains from shares in capital of another corporation subject to resident taxpaying (except dividends from investment
funds participation certificates and investment trusts shares) are exempt from corporate tax. f
i
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25. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - cont'd

b) Corporate tax ~ cont’d
Emission Premium Exemption

The issued shared that is from the foundation of incorporated company or increasing capital, emission premium gains from excess
of nominal value are exemption from corporate tax.

Exempz‘ion for Foreign Afffliate Earnings

The Company that has no legal head office located in Turkey, participating in 10% or more of the corporation for at least one year
continuously for a period of one year from the capital of a joint stock company or limited liability company, At least 15% (the main

- activity subject to financing or insurance companies, at least the rate of the corporate tax applied in Turkey), and the transfer of
the taxes {o the Turkey until the taxation deciaratlon of the annual corporations related to the taxatson penod Subsi dxary eammgs
are exempt from corporate tax.. : :

Exemption from Sales Gains for Real Estate, Subsidiar)/ Share, Subscription Right, Founder-and Preemptive Bonds

75% portion of the gains derived from the sale of preferential rights, usufruct shares and founding shares from investment equity
~ and real property, which has remained in assets for more than two full years are exempt from corporate tax. To be entitled to
the exemption, the relevant gain is required to be held in a fund account in the liabilities and it must not be withdrawn from the
entity for a period of five years. The sales consideration has to be collected up until the end of the second Caiendar year following
the year the sale was realized. : S ;

Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward to offset againstq fumre taxable income for up to five yeérs. Tax
losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their tax returns within the
25th of the fourth month following the close of the financial year fo which they relate,

Transfer Pricing

Article 13 of Corporation Tax Law numbered 5520 infroduces new arrangements about the fransfer pricing came into force as
of 1 January 2007. Significant changes took place in the arrangements related to the fransfer pricing following the respective
article based on the transfer pricing guidance of EU and OECD. In this framework, the entities are required fo use the prices
or amounts to be determined according to the peers for the purpose of sales or service buy and sale transactions carried out
with affiliated persons. The principle of suitability with the peers means that the price or amount fo be used for the purpose of
goods or.service buy and sale carried out with.the affiliated persons is suitable for the price or amount that would have arisen
if there had been no relation between them. The entities will determine the prices or amounts suitable for the peers that will be
applied for the purpose of transactions carried out with the affiliated persons by using the methods laid out in the respective
law according fo the nature of the fransaction.
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24. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - cont'd

a) Corporate tax - cont’d

The details of current tax asset / (liability) as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
TRY Other TRY Other
Corporate tax _ ‘ ’ (4.790.605)' ~  (4157.701) -
Prepaid taxes and funds (-) . 3754468 - 2.621.529 -
Total taxasse’ts](liabiiiﬁes), net - (1.036.137) - (1.536.472) -

b Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded usmg substantially enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between
book and tax bases of assets and liabilities.

The rate to be apphed to deferred tax assets and liabilities calculated usmg liability method over temporary dcﬁerenoes in the
- prospective periods is 20% for the Company (2014 20%) i

M0vement of deferred tax details in the periods ended on December 31,2015 and Decenﬁber 31, 2014 are as follows:

Cumulative temporary :
difference Deferred tax

December -~ December December ~ December
31,2015 31,2014 31,2015 31,2014
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for severance pay - (294.499) (164.730) 58.900 32.946
Provision for unused annual leave {69.442) {38.426) 13.688 7.685
Total deferred fax assets (363.941) {203.156) 72.788 40.631
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible and infangibles 2.630 91.480 {526) {18.296)
Total deferred tax liabilities 2.630 91.480 {526) {18.296)
Deferred tax assets, nat {361.311) {111.676} 72.262 22.335
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24, TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - cont'd

b} Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities - cont’d

Movement of tax assets / (liabilities)

December  December
31,2015 31,2014

Opening balance, January 01
Deferred tax income / {(expense)

22.335 6.148
49.927 16.187

72.262 22,335

Closing balance
c) Provision for operating tax

- The tax provision in the profit and loss statements is summarized below: -

January, 01 - = January, 01~ -

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Current period tax income / (expense), net , ' (4.790.605) - (4.157.701)

Deferred tax income / (expense), net ' R o498 16187
(4.740.678) (4.141.514)

d) Taxes and Liabilities to be paid ,
. December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

TRY Other TRY Other

Income tax v 100.104 - 87.889 -
BSMV 398.454 - 381.830 -
Stamp duty : 2.800 - 2.514 -
SSI premiums to be paid 95.553 - 87.673 -
596.911 559.906 -

25. OTHER ASSETS

None. (December 31; 2014 - None.)

26. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (NET) AND PAYABLES
aj Assets held for sale |

None. (December 31, 2014 — None.)

b} Discontinued operations

None. (December 31, 2014 ~ None.)
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27. BANKLOANS

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
TRY Other TRY QOther
Bank loans 223.440.613 ~  191.362.902 -
Funds provided from factoring companies 46.645.775 - 58.606.611 -
Loans from abroad 5.000.000 - 14.000.000 -
Interest accrual 5.837.434 - 5.344.177 -
280.923.822 ~  269.313.690
© 28. ISSUED BONDS AND SECURITIES (Net)
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
TRY Other o TRY " Other
lssued securites - 60.000.000 - 53.000.000 -
Bonds P : © 60.000.000 - - -
Securities o ' o 7 ) : - - 53.000.000 -
Entefest of securities/bonds iss‘ued ‘ - o 1.499.856 | -
Bonds - : : ‘ - - [T -
Securities ' - e 1.499.856 . -
T 60.000.000 -~ 54.499.856

As of Decémber 31,2015

As of September 30, 2015 the Company has issued bonds that is amount of TRY 60.000.000 with a maturity of 1 year. Bonds
issued through Tacirler Yatirim Menkuf Degerler Anonim Sirketi. The first interest coupon payment was made on 31 December
2015 and the other coupon payments will be made on 31 March 2016, 30 June 2016 and 29 September 2016. The principal
payment will be made with the last coupon payment.

The Company has obfained permission from the Capital Markets Board for the issuance of debt instruments amounting to TRY
40.000.000 as of November 5, 2015 but has not issued any borrowing instrument related to this permission as of the report
date. ' ' ’

As of December 31, 2014

On October 01, 2014 the Company has issued bonds that is amount of TRY 38.000.000 with a maturity of 1 year fo be sold to
qualified investors. Bonds issued through Tacirler Yatimim Menkul Dederler Anonim Sirketi.

The company has issted bonds to be sold to qualified investors on February 19, 2013 with a maturity of 2 years and payments
in every 3 months, totally amount to TRY — 15.000.000. Bonds issued through Tacirler Yatirim Menkul De@erler Anonim Sirketi.
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29. OTHER LIABILITIES
None. (December 31, 2014 ~ None.)

30. PAYABLES AND EXPENSE PROVISION

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

TRY Other TRY Other

Provision for severance pay _ 294.499 - 164.730 -
Provision for unused annual leave : ' , 69.442 - 38426 -
363.941 - 203456 - -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision for severance pay

In accordance with the provisions of the current Labour Code, there is a liability to pay severance pay fo employees if the confract.
is terminated in the way to entitled to take severance pay. Furthermore, in accordance with the Social Insurance Law No: 506
dated March 6, 1981, numbered 2422 and dated August 25, 1999, numbered 4447 and amended article 60 of the current Social
Insurance Law, there is liability to pay severance pay to the employees who have nght to leave jOb by taking severance pay ‘

The amount payable consists of one month s saiary !xmxted fo amaximum of TRY-3.828,37 for each year of service as of 31 December
2015 (31 Deoember 2014: 3.438,22TL). : _

Retirement pay %zabmty is not subject to any kind of funding legally. Provision for retirement pay liability is calculated by estimating the
present value of probable liability amount arising due to refirement of employees. TAS 19 Employee Benefits stipulates the
development of company’s liabilities by using actuarial valuation methods under defined benefit plans. In this dzrectlon actuarial
assumptions used in calculation of fotal liabilities are described as fol!ows

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount
rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anficipated effects of future inflaion. Consequently, in the
accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2015, the provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of
the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the respective balance
sheet dates have been calculated with the assumption of %2,99(2014: %2,36) real discount calculated by using %7,00 (2014
%86,10) annual inflation rate and %10,30 (2014: %8,60) discount rate.

Decembsr - December

Movement of severance pay 31,2015 31,2014
January 01 164.730 43.040
Service cost 129.769 121.690
Closing balance 294.459 164.730
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31. LOANS SIMILAR WITH CAPITAL
None. {December 31, 2014: None.)
32. EQUITY

32.1. Paid in capital and capital reserves

The paid in capital of the Company is TRY 25.500.000 that is consisted of 25.500.000 shares that each share is amount to TRY

1. (December 31, 2014: TRY 8.500.000/ 8.500.000 issued share.)

‘The own and rates of the shares are as fo!‘lows':

7 Decembgr 31, 2015

D_ecemberr31 , 2015

Amount % Amount %
Altin Haé Holding A.S. . R B % 100,00 725.499.625 % 100,00 8.499.875
Inan Altinbas ’ > 1 75 > 25
Hiseyin Altinbag >1 75 >1 25
- Abdiithamit Yurt > 1 75 e 1‘ 25
Atilla Keskin >1 75 o>t 25
Vedat Bayat > 75. > rAa

% 100,00 25.500.000

% 100,00

8.500.000

There are no privileges granted to shares.
32.2. Capital reserves

None. {December 31, 2014 - None.)

32.3.a Other comprehensive income and expenses that will not be classified in profit or loss statement.

None. (December 31, 2014 — None.)

32.3.b Gther comprehensive income and expenses that will be classified in profit or loss statement.

None.'( December 31, 2014 — None.)

32.4. Profit reserves

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2015

TRY Other TRY Other

Legal reserves 1.633.551 - 699.138 -

Extraordinary reserves 5.735.217 - 8.705.188 -
7.368.768 9.404.326
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32. EQUITY - cont'd

32.5. Retained Earnings

None. {December 31, 2014 — None )
32.6. Minority Interests

None. (December 31, 2014 — None.)
33. FACTORING INCOME

- January 01 - January 01-

, December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
- Interestincome . - : o : ' 84.912.541 © 63.000.020
Fee and commission income : : ‘ 1.495.599 - 633.567
' | 86.408.140 _ 63.633.587
34, FINANCE LOAN INCOME ,
None. (JanuaryOLDeoember 31, 2014 - None.)
35. LEASINGINCOME
- None. (January 01-December 31,2014 ~ None.)
36. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
January 01 - January 01 -

December 31, 2015 December 31,2014

Interest paid to the loans used (Domestic) {36.965.113

) (27.759.416)

Inferest paid to the loans used (Abroad) {989.067) o {1.816.691)
Interest expense on issued securities {6.100.350) (3.410.791)
Fees and commission expenses ' (3.163.679) (2.117.702)
{47.218.209) {35.104.600)
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37. OPERATING EXPENSES

January 01 - January 01 -
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Personnel expenses (5.358.427) {4.401.108)
Provision for severance pay (159.552) {121.690)
General operating expenses (2.439.819) (1.837.650)
Office rent and dues (469.900) (431.508)
Taxes and fees - » - . : (366.441) (351.119)
Vehicle rental expenses . ‘ ' : : . (360.180) - (308.152)
Office expenses - o A : (289.254) (214.442)
Communication expenses o ' ‘ (75.686) - (60.154)

~ Depreciation and amortization expenses _ o | (200.569) (121.106)
Fuelexpenses : , e (110.201) (113.143)
Constltancy expenses : ' ’  (165.765) "~ (101.636)
Bank transaction costs | - (245.320) (129.601)
Transportation expenses . - . (56.004) - (44.344)
Stationery expenses S S (30.880) - - (26.346)
Travel expenses ‘ - : (25319 - (17.163)
Repair and maintenance expenses o (2.562) S (931)
Subscription fees (880) (1.335)
Legal cases expenses (27.380) (2624
Other ' ‘ (13.478) (14.046)
Other expenses (Unused annual leave) ' (35.099) (24.192)
(7.992.897) (6.484.640)

38. OTHER OPERATING INCCME

January 01 - January 01 -
December 31,2015 December 31,2014

Foreign exchange profits v 7.009.300 1.802.890

Interest income from banks 13 2620
No longer required provision for factoring receivables (Note 15) ‘ 84.989 65.435
Other interest income 100.982 806.252
Interest income from issued securities 100.962 806,252
Other income except interest 4,625 93
Other 4.625 93
7.199.209 2.677.2580
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39. PROVISION FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

January 01 - January 01 -
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Special provision for non-performing receivables expenses (Note: 15) {7.828.157) (1.706.337)
{7.829.157) {1.706.337)
40. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
January 01 - January 01-
December 31, 2015 Decembem?_, 2014
~ Foreign Exchange losses (6.785.923) (2.379‘344)
(6.785.923) (2.379.344)
41. EARNINGS PER SHARE
January 01 - ‘January 01
December 31, 201»5 December 31, 2014

Total issued shares at the beginnfng of the period 8.500.000 8.500.000

_ Issued bonus shares 17.000.000 -
Total issued shares at the end of the period 25.500.000 8.500.000
Total issued weighted average shares 18.728.022 8.500.000
Net profit/ {loss) (TRY) 19.040.485 16.494.442
Earnings per share (%) 101,67 % 194,05 %
Earnings per share (TRY) 1,02 TL

There is no privilege to participate in the profit of the company.

42. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY
42.1. Receivables from related parties

None. {December 31, 2014 - None.)
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42. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY ~ cont'd

42.2. Due to related parties

December 31, December 31,

Due to related parties {Note -14) 2015 2014
Due to group companies 5.478.126 246.225
Altinhas Holding A.S.{ Other) 5.150.000 -
Altinhas Holding A.S. (Trade ) 328126 246.225
Total : e R ' ' ’ : - 5.478.126 | 246.225

423, Guarantee, p_ledQes, mortgages frbm;reiatied parties

Pledge . | ' ' December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
“TRY ’ o ' 436.750.000 298.750.000
-EURO ' . - 4.000.000 4.000.000 -
- USD$ : c ‘ : - 25.000.000 25‘000.000

42.4. Payments to related parﬁes(Expénses)

January01- - January 01-

) December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Altinhas Holding A.S. , : ' 4.197.105 ©3.157.431
Office rent and building 463629 . 431.508

IT expenses : 35.502 -~
Pledge commission , 2.416.549 2.043.097
Vehicle rent and fuel expenses 368.796 421.294
Miscellaneous expenses ‘ , 19.385 - 40,440
Interest expenses 893.243 221.092
Altinbas Holding A.S. = 46.367
Private health insurance ‘ - 46.367
4.197.105 3.203.798

42.5 Income from related parties

January 01 - January 01 -

December 31, December 31,

. 2015 2014

Final Varlik Yonetim A.S. (Note 15) 5.000 -
Total 5.000

Income is resulted from the receivables that is transferred by the company. (Note -15)
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42. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY - cont'd

42.6 Fees and Similar Benefits Paid fo Senior Managers

January 01 - January 01 -

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Fees and similar benefits 560.000 408.000
560.000 408.000

43. CONTQNGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
43.1. Off Balance Sheet Commitments
a)  Guarantees Taken

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the guarantees received against theCompany’s féctoring receivables are .
as follows: ' ' ‘ ‘ '

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015
TRY Other . TRY Other
Guarantee checks from customers - . 1474974905 7590135  888.080.639  1.333.971
Guarantee notes taken from customers © 137.000  19.243.857 - 137.000 - 21.269.077
Customer mortgages ' A 124.500.000 - 60.000.000 -
Customer pledges , 3.500.000 - . ‘ -

1.603.111.905 26.833.992 948.217.639  22.603.048

b) Gdarantees, pledges and mortgages given (GPM)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015
TRY Other TRY Other
Letter of guarantee given 1.651.632 - 217.792 =
1.651.632 —_ 217.792

43.2. Securities

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the assets held by the Company as factoring receivables are as follows;

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

TRY Other TRY Other
Customer cheques 320.527.761 36.325.536  296.087.800 20.785.420
Customer notes 31.379.274  11.399.130 37.115.051 6.215.236

351.907.035 47.724.666 333.202.851  27.000.656
7
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43. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - cont'd
43.3. Ongoing Lawsuits

As of December 31, 2015:

The Company has started legal follow-up for TRY 8.629.410 of total TRY 14.560.403.

In the accompanying financial statements, the necessary provisions are made with respect to the ongoing lawsuits filed by the
Company.

As of December 31, 2014

The Company has started Iega! fol!ow-up for TRY 2.153.402 of total TRY 5.581.339.

In the accompanying financial statements, the necessary provisions are made with respect to the ongoing lawsuits filed by the
Company. .

44, COMMITMENTS.

None. (Deoember 31,2014 - None.)

45 %ATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS AR S%?\iG FROM FINANCIAL INSTRGMEMS
Rlsk Managemem Objectwes and Prmcxp!es

The significant financial instruments of Company are receivables from factoring operating, bank loans, bonds payables and
financial payables that includes funds which was used by related parties. The main aim of these financial instruments is to
operate the main activity and provide the funding source. The most important risks arising from the financial instruments of the
Company are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, exchange risk and credit risk.

The Compavny follows the related risks summarized below and developing policies mentioned below for those risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering loss in terms of financial because of not meeting the obligation of financial instrument by the
other side. The Company tries fo manage the credit risk by limiting transactions and constantly valuating the reliability of the
parties to whom it relates. According to company procedures, all customers who want to work with credits are passed through

loan review stages and necessary guarantees are taken. In addition, the reoetvabies are continuously monitored and the
Company's suspicious credit / receivable risk is minimized.

The carrying values in the statement of financial position reflect the Company's maximum credit risk.
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY uniess otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ~ cont'd

Risk Management Objectives and Principles - cont’d
Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a company cannot meet its funding needs. Liquidity risk is reduced by balancing cash inflows and
outflows with the support of credits given by refiable fenders.

The detalls of financial assets and liabilities according to their maturity is presented considering the period of the financial statement
{o the maturity date.

_The'maturity details of non-derivative financial liabilities as of 31 Deéember 2015 and 31 December 2014 is'as follows: -
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounis are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd
Risk Management Objectives and Principles ~ cont'd
Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk of affect the Company negatively depending the changes in interest, foreign exchange rates, and other
financial contracts. The main risk for the Company is the changes in interest and foreign exchange rate.

a) Foreign Exchange Position and Sensitivity Analysis

 The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk because of the exchange rate using in frarislation of assets and habtlmes
to local currency. Company analys;s the forexgn exchange nsk with forelgn currency

December 31,2015 - December 31, 2014

~ Assets in foreign currency (*) o : %7042 16.849.312
Liabilities in foreign currency () (*} s (35.614.820) (16.322.738)
. Netfofeign currency position : , , ' ~1.155.802 - 526.574

" (*) Total of mdexed to forergn currency and forexgn currenoy factormg receivabk
) lndexed to foreign currency bank loans
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ~ cont'd
Risk Management Objectives and Principles ~ cont’d

aj Foreign Exchange Position and Sensitivity Analysis - cont'd

Foreign Exchange Position

December 31, 2015

TRY
Equivalent
{Reporting
Currency) .

- UsD

EUR

GBP

11 Factormg Receivables

36.767.560

4.311.365

2.984.928

- 3.428.960

2a. Monetary Financial Assets (including cash banks)

2862

1

900

2b. Non-monetary financial assets

3. Other

4.CurrentAssets (1+2+3}

36.770.422

4.311.366

2.985.328

3.428.960

5. Factoring Receivables =

6a. Monetaryfinancial assets -

6b. Non-monetaryfinancial assets

7.0Other

8.Non-CurrentAssets (5+6+7) ‘
- 9.Total Assets (4+8) '

36.770.422 |

4.311.366

2.985.828

3.428.960

10. Factoring Payables

“| 11:Financial Liabilities

35.614.820

4.214.057

2711197

3.428.960 |

12a.0thermonetaryfinancialliabilities

12b.Other non-monetary financial liabilities

13.CurrentLiabilities (10+11+12)

4.214.057

2.711.197

3.428.960

14. Factoring Payables

35.614.820

15 Financial Liabilities

16a.Othermonetaryfinancialliabilities

16b.Other non-monetary financial liabilities

17. Non-Current Liabilities (14+15+16)

18. Total Liabilities (13+17)

35.614.820

4.214.057

2.711.197

3.428.960

18, Net asset / Hability position of off- balance sheet
derivative instruments

na

19a. Hedged amount of assels

19b: Hedged amount of liabilities position

20. Net foreign currency position asset / liabilities (9-18419)

1.155.602

97.309

274.631

21. Net foreign currency asset/liability position of monetary
items

1.155.602

97.309

274.631

22. Fair value of derivative instruments used in foreign
currency hedge

23. Hedged of foreign currency assets

24. Hedged of foreign currency liabilities

25, Export

26. Import
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont’'d

Risk Management Objectives and Principles - cont’d

a} Foreign Exchange Position and Sensitivity Analysis - cont’'d

Foreign Exchange Position

December 31, 2014

TRY
Equivalent
{Reporting
Currency)

usb

EUR

GBP

1. Factoring Reoeivables

16.849.312

_3.481.162

3.111.568

2a. Monetary Financial Assets (including cash, banks)

2b. Non-monetary fi nancsal assets

3. Other

4.CurrenthAssets (1#2+3)

16.849.312

3.481.182

5. Factoring Receivables

6a. Monetaryfinancial assets

| 6b. Non-monetaryfi nancxai assets

7.0ther

8.Non-CurrentAssets (5+6+7)

9.Total Assets (4+8)

16.849.312.

3481182

3111568 |

10. Factoring Payables

11.Financial Liabilities

16.322.738

3.389.492

3.000.264

‘1 12a.Othermonetaryfinancialliabilities

12b.0ther nerni-monelary financial liabilities

13.CurrentLiabilities (10+11+12)

16.322.738

3.386.492

3.000.264

14. Factoring Payables -

15.Financial Liabilities

16a.0thermonetaryfinancialliabilities

16h.Other non-monetary financial liabilities

17. Non-Current Liabilities (14+15+16)

18. Total Liabilities (13+17)

16.322.738

3.000.264

19. Net asset / liability position of off- balance sheet
derivative instruments

19a. Hedged amount of assets

19b. Hedged amount of liabilities position

20. Net foreign currency position asset / liabilities (9-18+19)

526.574

111.304

21. Net foreign currency asset/liability position of monetary
items

526.574

111.304

22, Fair value of derivative instruments used in foreign
currency hedge

23. Hedged of foreign currency assets

24. Hedged of foreign currency liabilities

25, Export

26. import
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ~ cont’d
Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis

Foreign Currency Risk;

Company uses the foreign exchange position to dedicate the foreign currency risk. According to the foreign exchange position,
Company measures foreign currency risk periodically that will arise from changes in the foreign exchange rate.

Foreign currency risk is being controlled by balancing the assets and liabilities in the foreign currency. In this context, foreign
exchange position is estimated by considering the changes in assets and liabilities in the foreign currency in the next interim

- financial period. After estimating the foreign exchange position, Company. determines the derivative product and the volume of
the derivate product that may be used according to-the conditions of the market and expectations. If the exchange currency -
" position is open, Company is buyer of foreign currency. If the exchange currenoy posmon is close Company is seller of foreign
ourrency and apply fo derivative transactlons

The Company's foreign eurrency risk-sensitive financial assets are cash in foreign currency {cash, deposits in the bank), factoring.
receivables in foreign currencies and other receivables in foreign currencies and current assets. The Company's foreign currency
risk-sensitive financial liabilities are trade payables and bank loans that is indexed to bank loans.

Decémber 31, 2015 ‘ - December 31, 2014

Atbalance  -"Atthe - Atbalance - At the
sheet date report date sheet date _report date

Usb i$ 2,9076- 2,9348 2,3189 2,5077
EURO€ : 3,1776 3,2714 2,8207 2,8148

GBP : ‘ 4,3007 4,2527 . 3,5961 3,8596
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd
a} Interest Rate Position and Sensitivity Analysis

Interest Rate Position:

The Company's sensitive financial assets are factoring receivables and sensitive financial liabilities are bank loans, issued
securities and payables to related parties.

The Company manages payments and receivables with similar maturities, so they project to balance interest increase and
decrease. ‘ ' _ » A

Weighted average interest rates applied to sensitive assets and liabilities of the Company are as follows:

December 31,2015 ' December 31, 2015
% ' TRY USD$ EUR  GBP TRY USD$ EUR  GBP
Assets
Bank deposits . - - - - - -
Financial assets hield for trading = - - - 1306 - - -
Factoring receivables 22,01 -1205 11,65 1200 - 21,02 . 1373 1274 . -
Liabilities : o - v : :
Loans 13,63 4,20 365 = 550 11,66 4,48 4,23 -
Factoring payables - - - - S - - -
Issued securities 15,67 - - - 13,06 - -
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras {TRY unless otherwise stated)

45. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - cont'd
a) Interest Rate Position and Sensitivity Analysis

The interest position of the Company is as follows:

Interest Position

December 31,| December 31,

2015 2014

Fixed interest financial instruments L | 153.16.019]  135.823.728
Facloring receivables - ] e - 390.312.358 346.553.270
Loans(-} . - ' ' (236.494.080) | (210.464.219)
Factoring payables (-) S - (702.259) (265.323)
Variable rate financial instruments ' . ' (104.429.742) (107.430.957) |
Financial assets for trading 5.918.370
Loans() : , _ | (44.429.742) (58.849.471)
Issued secunt:es() - , L ‘ (60.000.000) ' (54 499. 856)

o mterest rate increase/ (decrease) by 1 point, it wm mcrease/(decrease) the net prof itthatisin the accompanymg mcome statement

which is amount to TRY 1.044.297 (December 31,2014: 1.074.310)

Capital Rx,sk Management Pohcres and Procedmes

In capita! management the Company aims at enhancmg profitability while keepmg a reasonabie leverage, on the other hand

rendering sustainability in ifs operations.

The Company follows capital by using debt to equity ratio. This rate is found by dividing net debt fo total equity. Net debt is
calculated by deducting cash and cash equivalents from total payable amount (as shown in balance sheet trade and other

payables and loans).

December  December

31,2015 31,2014

Total payables : ’ 349440609 326.896.202
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents (1.765) (6.250)

Banks (395.740) {557.080)

Net debt 349.043.104  326.332.872

Total equity 51.909.253  34.398.768

Debt/Equity Ratio % 14,87 % 10,54

The primary purpose of the Board of Company is to maximize the shareholder value and maintain a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ratios. The company manages and corrects capital structure according to the changes in economic
conditions. As of December 31, 2015 there is not any change in purpose, politics or process. (December 31, 2014 ~ None.)
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AK FAKTORING ANONIM SIRKETI

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Liras (TRY unless otherwise stated)

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING DISCLOSURES)

The Company has determined the estimated fair values of its financial instruments by using available market information and
appropriate valuation methods however, evaluating market information and estimating fair values requires interpretation and
judgment. Consequently, the estimates presented may not necessarily indicative the amounts the of the Company could obtain
in the market. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments

Financial Assets— Monetary items in foreign currency are exchanged by using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date
because they approximate their fair values. Financial assets are deemed to approximate their carrying values because having
short-term maturity, making provision for possible loss according to the economic and sectoral conditions.

Financia! Liabilities - Monetary items in foreign currency are exchanged by using fhe exchange rate at the balance sheet date

- - because they approximate their fair values. Financial dssets and other liabilities are deemed to approximate their carrying
~ values because having short-term maturity. : ‘ ’

47, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None. (December 31, 2014 - None)

48. OTHER MATTERS THAT MAY HAVE A MATERIAL EFFECT ON, OR PREVENT THE CLEAR UNDERSTANDING OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o g :

None. (December 31, 2014 — None)
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